Parks & Recreation
BOL Meeting Minutes -

Final
800 Michaellan Office Bldg.
148 Martine Avenue, 8th Floor
. . . i White Plains, NY 10601
Committee Chair: David Tubiolo www.westchesterlegislators.com
Monday, March 15, 2021 10:00 AM Committee Room

CALL TO ORDER

Meeting jointly with the Committees on Law & Major Contracts and Budget & Appropriations
With a quorum present, Chair Borgia called the meeting at 10:08 AM.

Pursuant to Governor Andrew Cuomo’s Executive Order No. 202.1, “Continuing Temporary
Suspension and Modification of Laws Relating to the Disaster Emergency,” which temporarily
suspends portions of the New York State Open Meetings Law.

A section of the order, "Suspension of law allowing the attendance of meetings telephonically
or other similar services," provides for the suspension of "Article 7 of the Public Officers Law,
to the extent necessary to permit any public body to meet and take such actions authorized by
the law without permitting in public in-person access to meetings and authorizing such
meetings to be held remotely by conference call or similar service, provided that the public has
the ability to view or listen to such proceeding and that such meetings are recorded and later
transcribed.”

Others in attendance: BOL: Legislator Catherine Borgia, Kitley Covill Legislators (Remote):
Nancy Barr, Jose Alvarado, Vedat Gashi, Colin Smith, Margaret Cunzio, Alfreda Williams,
Tyrae Woodson-Samuels; Chris Johnson Committee Coordinators: Jill Axelrod, Alessandra
Restiano, and Elizabeth LoBello, BOL: Lisa Hochman (Remote): Melanie Montalto LAW: John
Nonna, Rachel Noe, and Jack Micciche; Remote: Tami Altschiller, David Chen, and Sean
Carey GUESTS: Elizabeth Sacksteder

Present: Legislator Boykin

Remote: Legislator Tubiolo, Legislator Maher, Legislator Parker, Legislator Shimsky and
Legislator Walter

MINUTES APPROVAL
I ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

2021-153 ACT - Second Restated and Amended Playland Management
Agreement with Standard Amusement, LLC

AN ACT authorizing the County of Westchester to enter into a Second Restated and
Amended Playland Management Agreement with Standard Amusements, LLC in order to fully
resolve the allegations set forth in the Chapter 11 case entitled: In re Standard Amusements
LLC, Debtor, Case No. 19-23061 (RDD) and the Adversary Proceeding No. 19-08264 (RDD),
Standard Amusements LLC, Plantiff v. The County of Westchester, by and through George
Latimer, in his official capacity as County Executive of Westchester, Kathleen O'Connor in her
official capacity as the Commissioner of the Department of Parks, Recreation and

Page 1 of 4


http://westchestercountyny.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1382

Parks & Recreation BOL Meeting Minutes - Final March 15, 2021

Conservation, and Hugh J. Greechan, in his official capacity as the Commissioner of the
Department of Public Works and Transportation, Defendant.

Submitted by COMMITTEES ON BUDGET & APPROPRIATIONS, LAW & MAJOR
CONTRACTS AND PARKS & RECREATION

Joint with Law & Major Contracts and Budget & Appropriations

Guests: County Attorney John Nonna, Assistant Chief Deputy County Attorney Tami
Altschiller, Associate County Attorney David Chen, and Elizabeth Sacksteder, Partner, Paul
Weiss Rifkind Wharton & Garrison

Chair Barr and Legislator Borgia agreed that we had finished discussing alienation. Mr. Nonna
answered Legislator Parker’s questions regarding the Tiki Bar. He noted that after extensive
negotiations, Standard was given the opportunity to redesign and construct a new Tiki Bar in
consideration for the union labor provision. Ms. Sacksteder said the critical provisions are in
Section 6F(iv) on pages 29-30. For the first year, the Tiki Barr will continue to be operated by
the current licensee, pursuant to the revised agreement with the licensee. At the end of 2022,
Standard’s rights with respect to the Tiki Bar kick in. Standard is obligated to invest at least
$2.25 million in demolition and construction of a new restaurant, and they have to do this in
the first five years. The work will be subject to all of the County’s approval rights under section
6B of agreement. If the County doesn’t agree to Standard’s plans and specs for the new
facility or Standard can’t get the permits and approvals it needs, Standard can decline to
proceed with constructing a new facility. Standard may then continue to operate the current
facility, but they are not obligated to, and they can relinquish all rights in the Tiki Bar back to
the County. This is a no lose proposition for the County. She said that we added a provision
that the new facility can’t impede public access to the Boardwalk or Ice Casino. Legislator
Borgia asked if there is a time limit on how long construction can take. Ms. Sacksteder said
there is no specific time limit for construction, but it is in Standard’s commercial interest to get
it done quickly so they don’t lose revenue.

Ms. Sacksteder also noted that Standard is solely responsible for the cost of demolition and
construction and any extraordinary maintenance or repairs to the Tiki Bar for as long as they
are operating it. Mr. Nonna noted that Standard must use union labor. Unlike other provisions,
there is no time limit on use of union labor for construction and demolition of the Tiki Bar. If
Standard does subsequent work on the facility, they do not have to use union labor for that.
Legislator Barr asked if there is any possibility that we could we be left with a demolished Tiki
Bar but no new Tiki Bar. Ms. Sacksteder said County approval in advance of demolition is
required by Section 6B, and Standard would need permits to start demolition. She noted that
there is financial assurance in the agreement that Standard has the wherewithal to do the
entire project from the beginning. $2.25 million of the manager’s investment is earmarked for
the Tiki Bar, and demolition would not cost anywhere near that much. She noted that
demolition without building a new facility would be a material breach of agreement, and the
County could terminate the agreement and recover any associated damages.

Legislator Parker asked for clarification about labor, buildout, and discussions related to the
County’s compensation for that. Ms. Sacksteder said the prior agreement had no provisions
on union labor, and the new provisions were heavily negotiated. Legislation Parker
acknowledged that at least the union labor provision covers the original stage of Standard’s
takeover.

In terms of the parameters of a buildout, Ms. Sacksteder said any change in size or location of
the Tiki Bar shall be subject to County’s consent, which cannot be unreasonably withheld or
delayed. We wanted a consent right to ensure that any new facility will not impinge on any

Page 2 of 4



Parks & Recreation BOL Meeting Minutes - Final March 15, 2021

public access or be detrimental to our vision of Playland Park. Legislator Parker noted that this
has been a big issue with the current Tiki Bar, and asked what about size, and whether there
was discussion regarding public areas such as the pier, boardwalk, and seaside walkway. Ms.
Sacksteder said the discussion was principally around the boardwalk, and there was no
specific discussion regarding square footage or what the new facility would look like. The
consent right is meant to address issues like that as they arise. Ms. Altschiller reviewed the
terms of the amended agreement with the current licensee for the Tiki Bar. This was
discussed in executive session last week because the agreement had not yet been made
public. It has since been approved by A & C, so it can now be discussed in

open session.

Legislator Barr asked about the “morality clause” in the agreement. Mr. Nonna discussed
various provisions, including Section 2D, which provides that the park has to be operated in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Parks Department; Section 2BB, the revised
key personnel clause, which requires key personnel have no prior convictions for theft,
embezzlement, or a crime of moral turpitude; Schedule H-1 which requires a criminal
background check. He noted that Section 10 requires that subcontractors have integrity, and
Section 11 requires removal of any employee whose conduct, demeanor, or appearance is
objectionable to the Commissioner.

Chairman Boykin asked how this fits with the “Ban the Box” law, which prohibits asking about
criminal convictions on job applications. Mr. Nonna said you can’t refuse to hire someone
because of a criminal conviction unless the job relates to the crime they committed and poses
a risk. He noted that “Ban the Box” does not say you can never ask, just not on the
application. You can give a conditional job offer pending a background check.

Legislator Walter asked if the clause regarding criminal conviction applies to Nick Singer, the
principal of Standard. Mr. Nonna said he is subject to the criminal disclosure law, which covers
principals and not just employees.

Legislator Walter asked if the contract is assignable. Mr. Nonna said yes, but Section 10
provides that the County can evaluate anyone Standard seeks to assign to for their integrity
and financial ability, and it requires the County’s prior written consent which cannot be
unreasonably withheld. This was not in the prior agreement.

Mr. Nonna addressed Legislator Maher’s question regarding continuing meetings beyond five
years. The meetings for the first five years relate to the marketing plan. Section 2(0) requires
Standard to attend quarterly meetings with County personnel throughout the entire term of the
agreement.

Chair Barr discussed the remaining issues by noting that Mr. Nonna has said he does not
expect there to be an issue with having Standard agree to free parking in the off-season. Mr.
Nonna said they are talking to Standard about summer employment. He noted that they will
add language to the agreement regarding the qualifications for the monitor.

Mr. Nonna asked if the committee had any suggested criteria for sponsorships to bring to
Standard. Legislator Barr asked the legislators to submit that information to her or Mr. Nonna
within the next week. He noted that the Parks Department could promulgate rules and
regulations regarding the types of advertisements that would not be permitted because they
pose a danger to young people. Ms. Sacksteder asked if it would be sufficient if they proposed
no tobacco, vaping or alcohol sponsorship. Legislator Parker said we shouldn’t include alcohol
since some local businesses might be hurt by that.

Legislator Maher said that we should take the position that Standard has to get County
approval since the agreement goes for 35 years and we cannot foresee what might arise in
the future. We can discuss this with the Parks Department at our next meeting.

Page 3 of 4



Parks & Recreation BOL Meeting Minutes - Final March 15, 2021

This ACT was tabled
This ACT was tabled

Il. OTHER BUSINESS
lll. RECEIVE & FILE

ADJOURNMENT

On motion of Legislator Walter, seconded by Legislator Parker, the above item was adjourned
at 11:28 AM. The motion carried unanimously.

Page 4 of 4



